
 

Board of Adjustment                                                                 April 2, 2012 

Township of Ocean Minutes 

                                                                                                                                             

SPECIAL MEETING: 7:30 P.M. Public Meeting Room 

Deal and Monmouth Roads 

Oakhurst 

              

MEMBERS  

PRESENT: 

Jane Grabelle 

Russell Malta 

Eric Menell, At IV 

David Messer 

Leon Pflaster, Alt I 

Henry Schepiga, V Chair(arrived 7:31 pm) 

Richard Van Wagner (arrived 7:35 pm) 

Warren Goode, Chair 

MEMBERS  

ABSENT: 

Sylvia Sylvia, Alt III 

 

 

    

 

OTHERS PRESENT Mark A. Steinberg,  

James Higgins, P.P. 

Bill Fitzgerald, P.E. 

Marianne Wilensky,  

Rachel Goncharko, 

Zoning Board Attorney 

Board Planner 

Board Engineer (arrived 9:10 pm) 

Planning Administrator  

Board Secretary 

Recording Secretary 

   

 Chairman Warren Goode announced that the notice requirements for the Open 

Public Meetings Act have been satisfied, a copy of the notice was sent to the Asbury 

Park Press and the Coaster, posted in the Township Hall, and filed in the Office of the 

Township Clerk on March 26, 2012. 

 

 Vice Chairman Henry Schepiga arrived at 7:31 P.M. 

 

RESOLUTION MEMORIALIZATIONS 

 

Hollywood Golf Club 

Block 40, Lots 1, 2, 34, 111 

510 Roseld Avenue 

West Deal 

Amended Site Plan 

Approval 

 

MOVED: Goode SECOND:  Grabelle 

FAVOR: Grabelle, Malta, Menell, Messer, Goode 

OPPOSED: None 

INELIGIBLE: Pflaster, Schepiga 

ABSENT: Sylvia, Van Wagner  

 

Douglas and Stephanie 

Godfrey 

Block 33.24, Lot 2 

607 Dow Avenue 

Oakhurst 

Bulk Variance Approval 

 

MOVED: Grabelle SECOND:  Schepiga 

FAVOR: Grabelle, Malta, Menell, Messer, Pflaster, 

Schepiga 

OPPOSED: None 

INELIGIBLE: Goode 

ABSENT: Sylvia, Van Wagner  

 

Elaine and Arthur Aizer 

Block 47, Lot 10 

289 Parker Avenue 

West Deal 

Bulk Variance Approval 

 

MOVED: Grabelle SECOND:  Schepiga 

FAVOR: Grabelle, Malta, Menell, Messer, Pflaster, 

Schepiga 

OPPOSED: None 

INELIGIBLE: Goode 

ABSENT: Sylvia, Van Wagner  
 

Edward and Claudine Ades 

Block 22, Lot 29 

268 Roosevelt Avenue 

Oakhurst 

Bulk Variance Approval 

 

MOVED: Grabelle SECOND:  Schepiga 

FAVOR: Grabelle, Malta, Menell, Messer, Pflaster, 

Schepiga 

OPPOSED: None 

INELIGIBLE: Goode 

ABSENT: Sylvia, Van Wagner  
 

 

 



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 2 

Township of Ocean                                                                                         March 20, 2012 

 

Kurt Scheffler 

Block 120, Lot 14 

1407 Camp Avenue 

Wanamassa 

Bulk Variance Denial 

 

MOVED: Grabelle SECOND:  Schepiga 

FAVOR: Grabelle, Malta, Menell, Messer, Pflaster, 

Schepiga 

OPPOSED: None 

INELIGIBLE: Goode 

ABSENT: Sylvia, Van Wagner  
 

CONTINUED CASE 

 

T-Mobile Northeast, LLC 

Block 1, Lots 30, 31, 32 

1215-1229 West Park Avenue 

Wayside 

Zone R-1/ PAC 

This is an application for ‘c’ and ‘d’ variances with 

minor site plan approval to erect a monopole and 

for a sign variance.  

 

Attorney for the applicant: Frank Ferraro, Esq. 

 

Board Member Richard Van Wagner arrived at 7:35 p.m. 

 

 A statement was made that Board members Leon Pflaster and Eric Menell have 

read the transcripts and are eligible to vote on this application.  

 

 Chairman Goode read a prepared statement informing the audience of the 

procedures for the meeting.  

 

 Mr. Ferraro explained the delay in proceeding with the application. He said that 

a possible merger was the reason for the delay but now that the merger is no longer 

occurring, the applicant can proceed. He said that Mr. Collins, the Specialist in FCC 

Compliance Issues that testified at the meeting on June 2, 2011 is back to answer 

questions from the public. Mr. Collins of Pinnacle Telecom Group prepared the report 

that was moved into evidence A-2 at the July 14, 2011 meeting.  

 

 From the audience, Al Kerecman, 740 Bowne Road, referred to Mr. Collin’s report 

to ask specific questions about the antennas and radio frequency emissions. Mr. Ferraro 

reminded Mr. Kerecman that Mr. Collins has testified to FCC compliance and can only 

answer questions relating to that issue and what was presented in his report. Mr. Collins 

explained that he is legally required to use the mathematical formula he used to 

determine emission compliance in the report. He explained that the tower will be 

emitting 720 times below the maximum emissions allowed by the FCC.  

 

Mr. Kerecman referred to Sheet A-1 of the map series presented by T-Mobile. He 

asked why the Ocean Township school was not included on the map if it is within 500’ of 

the site. Mr. Collins was not qualified to answer that question.  

 

Mr. Kerecman asked what the results would be if the maximum level of emissions 

allowed by the FCC were reached. Mr. Collins said that the system is designed to work 

at the maximum level allowed, which is 240 watts. By Federal law they are not allowed 

to exceed that level.  

 

 Mr. Kerecman asked about the horizontal positioning of the antenna. Mr. Collins 

said that at this time the antenna is only proposed to point horizontally. Mr. Ferraro 

asked if an electrical down tilt is possible. Mr. Collins said that it would be very minimal. 

The maximum limit would not be exceeded because of a few degrees of down tilt. Mr. 

Kerecman asked if the MPE percentage of the site can be truthfully reported without 

taking down tilt into accont. Mr. Collins said that if a down tilt had been taken into 

account then there would have been different results. Mr. Kerecman asked questions 

relating to the placement and tilt of the antenna. Chairman Goode asked Mr. 

Kerecman to limit his questions to FCC compliance.  

 

 Dr. Kenneth Lebowitz, 1218 West Park Avenue, asked about the health risks 

caused by the emissions. Mr. Collins was not qualified to answer those questions. 

 

  



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 3 

Township of Ocean                                                                                         March 20, 2012 

 

Roberta Cavano, Rolling Meadows, asked about the interference with the 

antenna signals. Mr. Collins was not qualified to answer those questions. 

 

 Pat Brophy, Rolling Meadows, asked if there is a difference in FCC standards for 

rural and populated areas. Mr. Collins said that standards were set in 1996 by 

biophysicists. They set the standard 50% below the safest maximum level. Mr. Brophy 

asked how often someone would come to the tower to check emissions and what 

would happen if the emissions did exceed the maximum limit. Mr. Collins said that there 

is no need to send someone to check the emissions because there are severe penalties 

from the FCC if there is an increase in power. 

 

 Joe Walker, Rolling Meadows, asked what will happen if other carriers are 

granted space on the tower. Mr. Ferraro explained that they would need to 

demonstrate compliance with the allowed limits. 

 

 Ken Jannarone, Ocean Township Board of Edcuation, asked if the emission 

standards are based on a normal healthy person or if they apply to everyone including 

young children or people with illnesses. Mr. Collins said that they will affect everyone the 

same.  Board Planner James Higgins, P.P. asked what the typical person is exposed to in 

a typically setting. Mr. Collins said 1 ¼ - 1 ½ % of the limit. Mr. Higgins asked how that 

compares to exposure from cell phones, bluetooths, microwaves, etc. Mr. Collins said 

that the FCC website has that information for each make and model. Microwaves emit 

4% and refrigerators emit even more. What the tower will emit is far lower than what you 

would experience in your own kitchen. Mr. Higgins responded to Mr. Kerecman’s 

question about the distance of the intermediate school from the tower. He said that the 

school is much farther than 500 feet away, closer to 1,000 feet away, which is why it was 

not included on the map submitted by T-Mobile. 

 

 Mr. Van Wagner asked what the emissions would be if the tower were full. Mr. 

Ferraro said that the pole is built to accommodate a total of four emitters. Mr. Collins 

said that the emissions would be less than 5% of the total allowable limit. Mr. Van 

Wagner asked if the co-locators would have to go to the Board for approvals. Planning 

Administrator Marianne Wilensky said that it depends. Mr. Van Wagner asked if the limit 

would change if the pole were full. Mr. Collins said that the maximum level would 

increase but it would still be well below the FCC allowable limit.  

 

 Ronald Graiff, P.E., Radio Frequency expert hired at the request of the Board of 

Adjustment, said that the Board cannot deny the application based on RF exposure 

because it is exempt. He requested that the applicant submit a revised analysis showing 

the worst case scenario with the down tilt. The report will be filed with the Planning 

Department and submitted to Graiff for review. Mr. Collins will include CTE and PES 

capabilities for Verizon and AT&T.  

 

 Dr. Lebowitz, asked if Mr. Collins has ever seen a tower illegally emit.  Mr. Collins 

said that he has not and that even towers that are fully booked have not exceeded the 

FCC limit.  

 

 Mr. Kerecman asked how the revisions will be handled. Mr. Ferraro said that the 

calculations will be redone based on a conservative down tilt angle. Mr. Graiff said that 

it will be done based on the maximum possible down tilt that could be achieved if the 

brackets were loose.  

 

 Fenton Hudson, 13 Mahoras Drive, referred to the report marked A-2 and asked 

when the information was gathered. Mr. Collins said it was gathered in 1996. Mr. Hudson 

asked that if he redid the calculations would he have to do them the same way. Mr. 

Collins said that by law he would have to do them the same. Mr. Hudson asked what is 

the maximum power input of the tower. Mr. Collins said that it is 240 watts per sector 

with three sectors total.  

 



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 4 

Township of Ocean                                                                                         March 20, 2012 

 Mr. Ferraro presented Mr. Mineo, Radio Frequency engineer for T-Mobile 

Northeast, LLC who prepared the exhibits presented at the July 14, 2011 meeting. Mr. 

Mineo responded to questions about potential interference with devices in the area. He  

 

said that T-Mobile is barred by the FCC from interfering with any other devices in the 

area and that there would be no interference with devices in schools, homes or 

municipal emergency services.  

 

 Mr. Mineo described how the facility will be maintained. It will be an unmanned 

facility that will be visited once every 6 weeks to service equipment. The service 

technician will be there for 40- 60 minutes.  

 

 Mr. Mineo described the Distribution Antenna System (DAS) and said that it is not 

a feasible alternative to the tower. He said that it is more equipped for smaller 

coverage and utility poles would have to be installed in the residential areas that do 

not have them.  

 

 Mr. Mineo explained that E911 capabilities would be enhanced by the tower. It 

would allow phone systems to detect where a 911 call is being placed so that the 

person calling does not need to give their address.  

 

 Mr. Kerecman asked about Mr. Graiff’s qualifications and business background. 

Board Attorney Mark Steinberg said that Mr. Graiff will have to be sworn in before 

questions could be asked about his qualifications.  

 

 Mr. Graiff was sworn in and gave his qualifications as an independent radio 

frequency engineer. Mr. Kerecman asked if Mr. Graiff received income from leasing 

tower space. Mr. Graiff said that he does not. He explained that he and his wife 

purchased radio stations in upstate New York. They sold them and kept the tower. He 

said that it is independent from his career as an independent radio frequency expert. 

Mr. Kerecman asked how Mr. Graiff was hired for the position. Mr. Higgins said that he 

supplied the name because other towns had recommended him.  

 

 Board Engineer William Fitzgerald, P.E. arrived at 9:10 p.m. 

 

 Thomas Hirsch, Esquire, attorney representing Rolling Meadows, requested that 

Mr. Graiff’s curriculum vitae be marked into evidence. Ms. Wilensky said that it will be 

marked into evidence at the next hearing as she did not have it with her. 

 

 Mr. Graiff referred to Mr. Mineo’s report which was marked as A-3 Identification 

Only at the July 14, 2011 meeting. The reports and exhibits were moved into evidence 

A-3 through A-10. Mr. Graiff asked about the distance from the towers and the number 

of sectors on each tower. Mr. Mineo explained that the towers are placed based on 

the need for service and referred to the base map, Exhibit 1, to show how many sectors 

are on each tower. He said that 4 sector sites are not that uncommon anymore. 

 

 Chairman Warren Goode announced that the Board will take a break at 9:25 

p.m. The meeting resumed at 9:35 p.m.  

 

 Transparencies of the exhibits previously submitted by Mr. Mineo were marked 

into evidence A-11. Mr. Graiff referred to A-11 to discuss T-Mobile’s coverage in the 

area. They discussed in-building and in-vehicle coverage. Mr. Graiff referred to Exhibit 7 

of evidence A-10 to discuss the propagation of existing tower sites in town. Mr. Graiff 

said that a propagation analysis may be helpful to see if those towers would be able to 

be used. Mr. Graiff also suggested using the medians on Route 18. Vice Chairman 

Schepiga asked if Mr. Mineo could provide additional information on those possibilities. 

Mr. Ferraro said yes. Mr. Graiff and Mr. Mineo discussed different design alternatives. Mr. 

Mineo explained that a more stealth enclosure would not work because the newer 

technologies to be used in the future will not be able to be installed in them.  

 

 Chairman Goode announced that they are out of time and carried the hearing 

to May 10, 2012 in order to announce the date of when the special meeting will be 



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 5 

Township of Ocean                                                                                         March 20, 2012 

held. Ms. Wilensky said that the date will also be posted on the website. Mr. Mineo will 

be at the next hearing for more testimony. 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at 10:25 P.M.  

 Rachel Goncharko 

 Board Secretary 

 Recording Secretary 

 

 

 


